
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA (AMENDED) 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2024 - 6:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. ROLL CALL.

VI. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VII. PROCLAMATIONS:
1. Breast Cancer Awareness Month.
2. Fire Prevention Week.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any
other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of
the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on
the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the
Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum
of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The
Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the
matter for further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for
disposition. Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly
Room.

1. Tucker Moore – Establishing a net metering policy for solar energy.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed
by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the
Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask
questions.

1. Southbrook Annexation: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024.
2. Villa Grande Phase 3 Annexation: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024.

X. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Sutton Capital Group, LLC/Farmstead Subdivision: Utilities Service Issue.

XI. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Stormwater Advisory Board: Appoint Members.
2. Recreation Advisory Board: Appoint to Vacant Position.
3. Purchase Yanmar Mini Excavator for Electric Department.
4. Approval of Contract with Pitt County Schools for School Resource Officers.
5. Winterville Human Relations Board desire to develop a “Season of Giving” effort for those

experiencing financial barriers.



XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Request for Recycling Review-3 months after change. (Councilwoman Hawkins).
2. Winterville Business Town Hall-In Person Business Advertisement/Display to Town

Council/Residents. (Councilwoman Hawkins).
3. Youth Council-Need for Reactivation. (Councilwoman Hawkins).
4. Our Law Enforcement Community Connections-Mental Health Awareness Day.

(Councilwoman Hawkins).

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:
1. Schedule a workshop for UNC Environmental Finance Center regarding Water and Sewer

financial condition and rate analysis.
2. Schedule a workshop on Helping Get Access to Energy Funding.

XIV. QUARTERLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS.

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, October 15, 2024 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room.

• 2024 General Election One Stop Early Voting: Thursday, October 17, 2024 – Saturday,
November 2, 2024 – Community Room.

• Coffee with a Cop: Friday, October 18, 2024; 9:00 am - 10:30 am –  Cooper’s Cup, 2588
Railroad Street.

• Movie in the Park: Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles - Mutant Mayhem (pg): Friday, October 18,
2024; 7:00 – 8:30 pm - Winterville Recreation Park Amphitheater.

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, October 21, 2024 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, October 22, 2024 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center.

• November Agenda Information and Abstracts Due: Wednesday, October 23, 2024.

• Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, October 24, 2024 @ 7:00 – Executive
Conference Room.

• Friday Night Concert: Dakota Blue: Friday, October 25, 2024; 7:00 – 8:30 pm - Winterville
Recreation Park Amphitheater.

• Fright Fest-Sponsored by Chamber of Commerce: Sunday, October 27, 2024; 3:00 pm –
6:00 pm – Downtown Winterville.

• Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, October 31, 2024 @4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive
Conference Room.

• Daylight Saving Time Ends: Sunday, November 3, 2024@ 2:00 am. (Fall Back).

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, November 4, 2024 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• 2024 General Election: Tuesday, November 5, 2024 – Community Room and Operation
Center Training Room.

• Veteran’s Day Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Monday, November 11, 2024.

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff
or negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body
in negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the
acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the amount of
compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or proposed employment
contract.

XVIII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



PROCLAMATION 
BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

OCTOBER 2024 

WHEREAS, October is National Breast Cancer Awareness Month, which is an annual 
campaign to increase awareness of this disease and while we have seen an increase in 
mammography rates and a decline in deaths, there is more that can be done; and 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society continues to advise women to get an annual 
mammogram screening once they reach the age of 40; and 

WHEREAS, throughout the month of October, all women are encouraged to make a 
renewed commitment to following recommended screening guidelines and to make a 
mammogram appointment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville stands in solidarity with the mothers, sisters, wives, 
daughters, friends, neighbors, and others who are battling this disease; and 

WHEREAS, Pink ribbons have become an internationally recognized symbol of Courage, 
Support, and the Symbol of Hope for a breast cancer cure; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville recognizes the importance of working together and 
supporting Breast Cancer Awareness Month; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby 
proclaim October 2024 as Breast Cancer Awareness Month. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 14th day of October 2024. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

3



PROCLAMATION 
FIRE PREVENTION 2024 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those 

living in and visiting our Town; and 

WHEREAS, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally, state-wide, and nationally, and 

homes are the locations where people are at greatest risk from fire; and 

WHEREAS, home fires killed more than 2,700 people in the United States in 2022, according to 

the National Fire Protection Association® (NFPA®), and fire departments in the United States 

responded to over 360,000 home fires; and 

WHEREAS, roughly three out of five fire deaths happen in homes with either no smoke alarms or 

with no working smoke alarms, working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires 

almost in half, and smoke alarms sense smoke well before you can, alerting you to danger in the 

event of fire in which you may have as little as 2 minutes to escape safely; and 

WHEREAS, Winterville residents should install smoke alarms in every sleeping room, outside 

each separate sleeping area, and on every level of the home, make sure their smoke alarms meet the 

needs of all their family members, including those with sensory or physical disabilities, and test 

smoke alarms at least once a month. 

WHEREAS, residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more 

prepared and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 

WHEREAS, Winterville’s first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of home fires 

and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 

WHEREAS, the 2024 Fire Prevention theme, “Smoke alarms: Make them work for you”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Richard E. Hines, Mayor of the Town of Winterville do hereby proclaim 

October 2024, as Fire Prevention Month throughout the Town, and urge all the citizens of Winterville 

to support the many public safety activities and efforts of the Winterville Fire-Rescue-EMS 

Department. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 

14th day of October 2024. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



5



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Southbrook Annexation. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024 Town Council Meeting. 

Attachment: Annexation Application, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Resolution Directing Town Clerk 
to Investigate Petition's Sufficiency, Certificate of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 10/2/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate Holdings, Inc. 

Location: Between Laurie Ellis Road and Church Street Extension. 

Parcel Numbers: 82582, 19880, 80704, 83029. 

Site Data: 246.177 Acres. 

Zoning District: R-6 & M-R Conditional District Planned Unit Development. 

Staff Analysis: 

Southbrook is a 246 acre Planned Unit Development that will feature up to 612 residential units. 

Anticipated Annexation Schedule: 

9/9/24: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

10/14/24: Schedule Public Hearing. 

11/4/2024: Hold Public Hearing. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024 Town Council Meeting. 

 

6



7



8



B
R

O
O

K
S

T
O

N
E

P
H

A
S

E
 1

B
K

 7
1
 P

G
 1

1
8

M
E

L
L
O

N
 D

O
W

N
S

P
H

A
S

E
 1

B
K

 7
1
 P

G
 1

9
1

M
E

L
L
O

N
 D

O
W

N
S

P
H

A
S

E
 1

1
-B

B
K

 7
9
 P

G
 1

3
0

L
A

U
R

IE
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

P
H

3
, 
S

E
C

T
 A

P
B

 8
1
 P

G
 5

2

L
A

U
R

IE
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

P
H

3
, 
S

E
C

T
 B

P
B

 8
2
 P

G
 5

5

H
O

L
L
Y

 G
R

O
V

E

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
P

B
 8

4
 P

G
 8

9

9



 

Legal Description For 

Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate Holdings LLC 

Winterville Township, Pitt County 

North Carolina 

 

Commencing at a point, said point being an iron pipe found along the eastern right-of-way of Church 

Street Ext. (SR 1714) in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina. Point further described as the 

northwestern corner of the Annie Mae E. Allen Life Estate property as recorded in Deed Book DC108, 

Page 1, Pitt County Registry. Point also described as a western corner of the Chapel Hill Foundation Real 

Estate Holdings Inc. property as recorded in Deed Book 3448 Page 378 and the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

Thence along the eastern right-of-way of Church Street Ext. N 13°49'16" E a distance of 839.61 feet to an 

iron pipe found. Thence with a curve turning to the right with an arc length of 34.22 feet, with a radius of 

970.00 feet, with a chord bearing of N 14°49'55" E, with a chord length of 34.22 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence S 76°40'42" E a distance of 221.56 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 13°21'42" E a 

distance of 199.94 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°41'35" E a distance of 48.55 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence S 76°43'28" E a distance of 79.97 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°41'04" E a 

distance of 80.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°43'38" E a distance of 80.00 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence S 76°38'17" E a distance of 79.88 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°42'13" E a 

distance of 95.07 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°53'54" E a distance of 233.88 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence S 76°11'58" E a distance of 80.03 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°18'57" E a 

distance of 79.91 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°44'16" E a distance of 81.00 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence S 76°02'02" E a distance of 48.73 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 77°35'50" E a 

distance of 31.28 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°36'08" E a distance of 338.06 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence N 00°31'39" E a distance of 182.63 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 00°29'08" E 

a distance of 330.30 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 00°38'02" E a distance of 65.26 feet to an 

concrete monument. Thence N 89°59'29" E a distance of 114.37 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 

89°58'14" E a distance of 203.88 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°58'34" E a distance of 28.92 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°56'11" E a distance of 114.38 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 

S 89°59'31" E a distance of 173.14 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 89°54'48" E a distance of 87.40 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°58'10" E a distance of 172.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 

S 89°56'54" E a distance of 590.76 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°50'17" E a distance of 80.27 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 89°50'37" E a distance of 79.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 

89°57'59" E a distance of 137.59 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°56'43" E a distance of 94.24 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°10'01" E a distance of 80.18 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 

23°59'09" E a distance of 140.25 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°08'47" E a distance of 80.05 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°05'04" E a distance of 79.83 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 

23°59'17" E a distance of 95.32 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°13'03" E a distance of 59.81 feet 

to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°15'41" E a distance of 95.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 

24°08'17" E a distance of 80.01 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°06'04" E a distance of 68.97 feet 

to an iron pipe found. Thence N 25°06'13" E a distance of 44.47 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 

02°31'42" E a distance of 102.94 feet to an iron pipe found. 

10



Thence N 02°35'22" E a distance of 79.97 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°40'37" E a distance of 

80.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°38'11" E a distance of 79.90 feet to an iron pipe found.  

Thence N 02°38'58" E a distance of 80.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°37'12" E a distance of 

80.03 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°36'39" E a distance of 65.77 feet to an iron pipe found. 

Thence N 02°37'37" E a distance of 80.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°34'45" E a distance of 

100.31 feet to an iron pipe found along the southern right-of-way of Laurie Ellie Road (SR 1713). Thence 

across the right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road N 09°30'52" E a distance of 60.00 feet to a point. Thence 

down the northern right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road S 80°29'08" E a distance of 530.03 feet to a point. 

Thence across the right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road S 09°30'52" W a distance of 60.00 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence S 01°56'14" W a distance of 708.73 feet to an existing axle. Thence S 88°58'00" E a 

distance of 152.87 feet to an existing axle. Thence S 00°09'02" W a distance of 171.26 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence S 00°13'41" W a distance of 1632.07 feet to an existing axle. Thence N 86°17'28" W a 

distance of 215.90 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 13°39'00" W a distance of 214.53 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence S 21°51'13" W a distance of 355.50 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  

N 78°17'01" W a distance of 371.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 45°24'01" W a distance of 

198.70 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence S 88°23'03" W a distance of 244.59 feet to an iron pipe found. 

Thence S 26°55'31" W a distance of 449.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 42°39'50" E a distance of 

75.00 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 19°34'18" E a distance of 74.12 feet to an iron pipe found. 

Thence S 84°01'21" W a distance of 665.25 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence S 00°28'33" W a distance of 

65.15 feet to a concrete monument. Thence S 00°19'26" W a distance of 1555.90 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence N 74°31'09" W a distance of 65.83 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 73°35'21" W a 

distance of 101.37 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 74°41'15" W a distance of 63.53 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence N 73°41'32" W a distance of 147.25 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 77°17'38" 

W a distance of 212.23 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 72°38'39" W a distance of 99.96 feet to an 

iron pipe found. Thence N 73°01'28" W a distance of 81.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  

N 79°42'20" W a distance of 141.75 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 86°31'20" W a distance of 

131.43 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 32°10'26" W a distance of 1303.35 feet to concrete 

monument. Thence S 85°20'28" W a distance of 501.60 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence N 61°11'51" W a 

distance of 51.66 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence N 33°16'57" E a distance of 74.40 feet to an iron pipe 

found. Thence N 33°16'57" E a distance of 101.95 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 33°32'17" E a 

distance of 202.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 35°14'59" E a distance of 173.09 feet to an iron 

pipe set. Thence N 62°59'38" W a distance of 20.21 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 62°59'38" W a 

distance of 97.24 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 63°12'47" W a distance of 176.47 feet to an iron 

pipe found. Thence N 63°11'09" W a distance of 108.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  

N 63°18'50" W a distance of 31.73 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 06°25'46" E a distance of 72.99 

feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 34°39'10" W a distance of 299.54 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 

N 58°37'40" W a distance of 71.17 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 77°23'18" W a distance of 192.29 

feet to an iron pipe found and the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 246.177 acres (10723486 

square feet). 

11



12



13



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Villa Grande Phase 3 Annexation. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024 Town Council Meeting. 

Attachment: Annexation Application, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Resolution Directing Town Clerk 
to Investigate Petition's Sufficiency, Certificate of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 10/2/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Nolan Commercial Contractors, INC. Nolan W. Sydes. 

Location: On Red Forbes Road, north of Villa Grande’s existing homes. 

Parcel Numbers: 82582, 19880, 80704, 83029. 

Site Data: 22.733 Acres of Villa Grande and an additional 0.67 acres of Red Forbes Road in which the 

opposite side of the street is also annexed. 

Zoning District: R-10. 

Staff Analysis: 

Villa Grande Phase 3 is currently under construction and will add 40 new residential lots. This annexation will 

include a small portion of Red Forbes Road in which the opposite side of the Street is within the Town of 

Winterville. 

Anticipated Annexation Schedule: 

9/9/24: Direct Town Clerk To Investigate Sufficiency. 

10/14/24: Schedule Public Hearing. 

11/4/2024: Hold Public Hearing. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing for November 4, 2024 Town Council Meeting. 

 

14



SV Pitt County, LLC

15



16



Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

Parcel Numbers 19880, 80704, 82582 and 83029 

Winterville, Pitt County, North Carolina 
 

 Beginning at a Point, said Point being the northeastern most corner of Common Area ‘B’ as 

shown on that certain plat entitled “Final Plat Villa Grande Phase One Section “A” dated June 14, 2017 as 

recorded in Book 81, Page 180-181 in the Pitt County Register of Deeds 

Thence, from said Point of Beginning, along North 74 degrees 59 minutes 48 seconds West for a 

distance of 154.33 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 87 degrees 07 minutes 51 seconds West for a distance of 414.10 feet to a point; 

 Thence, North 19 degrees 33 minutes 14 seconds West for a distance of 262.80 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 65 degrees 56 minutes 58 seconds West for a distance of 286.98 feet to a point; 

Thence, turning to the northwest and along and with the eastern boundary line of the Villa Grande 

Phase One Section “B” as recorded in Map Book 84, Page 134 of the Pitt County registry, North 

22 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West for a distance of 961.70 feet to a point;  

 Thence, North 67 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West for a distance of 138.81 feet to a point; 

 Thence, North 27 degrees 10 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 371.18 feet to a point; 
 Thence, South 75 degrees 20 minutes 43 seconds East for a distance of 259.58 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 40 degrees 22 minutes 57 seconds East for a distance of 17.79 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 34 degrees 40 minutes 21 seconds East for a distance of 31.91 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 64 degrees 29 minutes 35 seconds East for a distance of 41.35 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 53 degrees 33 minutes 41 seconds East for a distance of 32.75 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 60 degrees 43 minutes 49 seconds East for a distance of 31.46 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 47 degrees 26 minutes 05 seconds East for a distance of 59.39 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 25 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 37.20 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 12 degrees 27 minutes 38 seconds East for a distance of 42.01 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 10 degrees 52 minutes 13 seconds West for a distance of 151.42 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 02 degrees 16 minutes 35 seconds West for a distance of 42.95 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 19 degrees 30 minutes 18 seconds East for a distance of 97.46 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 27 degrees 55 minutes 19 seconds East for a distance of 75.06 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 31 degrees 35 minutes 42 seconds East for a distance of 32.01 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 59 degrees 54 minutes 10 seconds East for a distance of 53.21 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 77 degrees 20 minutes 28 seconds East for a distance of 55.68 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 72 degrees 11 minutes 12 seconds East for a distance of 56.87 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 89 degrees 16 minutes 54 seconds East for a distance of 40.54 feet to a point; 
Thence, North 86 degrees 22 minutes 55 seconds East for a distance of 669.95 feet to a point on 

the western right of way of Red Forbes Road; 

Thence, and along and with the western right of way of Red Forbes Road, South 12 degrees 11 

minutes 03 seconds West for a distance of 144.29 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 09 degrees 42 minutes 11 seconds West for a distance of 337.42 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 10 degrees 38 minutes 41 seconds West for a distance of 220.48 feet to a point; 
Thence, South 14 degrees 24 minutes 34 seconds West for a distance of 49.97 feet to the Point of 

Beginning. 

 

The above-described tract also being the same as shown on that certain map entitled “Boundary Survey 

for Nolan Commercial Contractors, Inc.” as recorded in Book 87, Page 191 in the Pitt County Register of 

Deeds. 

Containing 22.733 acres, more or less. 

 

17



Red Forbes Road R/W… 

 

Beginning at a Point, said Point being the following courses and distances from the northeastern 

most corner of Common Area ‘B’ as shown on that certain plat entitled “Final Plat Villa Grande Phase 

One Section “A” dated June 14, 2017 as recorded in Book 81, Page 180-181 in the Pitt County Register 

of Deeds: 

Along and with the western right of way of Red Forbes Road (SR 2106), North 14 degrees, 24 

minutes, 34 seconds East for a distance of 49.97 feet; 

Thence, North 10 degrees 38 minutes 41 seconds East for a distance of 206.04 feet to the Point 

of Beginning. 

 

Thence, from said Point of Beginning, along and with the western right of way of Red 

Forbes Road (SR 2106), North 10 degrees 38 minutes 41 seconds East for a distance of 14.44 

feet to a point; 

Thence, North 09 degrees 42 minutes 11 seconds East for a distance of 337.42 feet to a point; 

Thence, North 12 degrees 11 minutes 03 seconds East for a distance of 144.29 feet to a point; 

Thence, leaving the western right of way of Red Forbes Road (SR 2106), South 75 degrees 35 

minutes 02 seconds East for a distance of 59.39’ feet to a point in the eastern right of way of 

Red Forbes Road (SR 2106); 

Thence, along and with the eastern right of way of Red Forbes Road (SR 2106), South 14 

degrees 24 minutes 58 seconds West for a distance of 38.10 feet to a point: 

Thence, South 12 degrees 08 minutes 18 seconds West for a distance of 51.96 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 10 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds West for a distance of 53.61 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 10 degrees 06 minutes 45 seconds West for a distance of 52.39 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 37 minutes 13 seconds West for a distance of 59.84 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 35 minutes 42 seconds West for a distance of 59.69 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds West for a distance of 67.19 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 47 minutes 30 seconds West for a distance of 12.05 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 47 minutes 30 seconds West for a distance of 97.47 feet to a point; 

Thence, leaving the eastern right of way of Red Forbes Road (SR 2106), North 79 degrees 21 

minutes 19 seconds West for a distance of 59.45 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 0.67 acres, more or less. 

 

End of Legal Description 

 

18



19



20



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Stormwater Advisory Board Members. 

Action Requested: Appoint Members to the Stormwater Advisory Board. 

Attachment: Applications on file. 

Prepared By: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director Date: 10/7/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

Stormwater Advisory Committee Members 

The Stormwater Advisory Committee is made up of five (5) regular members and one (1) alternate member. 

Members serve a three (3) year term for the purpose of providing stormwater management policy guidance 

to the Town. 

The Committee shall consist of members of a cross section of local citizens and stakeholders representing 

neighborhood groups, professional organizations, industrial and commercial associations, environmental 

groups, builders association, and others that the town recognizes as having an interest in stormwater 

management issues. 

There are currently four (4) applications on file in which applicant indicated Stormwater Advisory as their 

interest or preference. The applicants, all of whom are Town residents, are as follows (listed in order of 

receipt): 

• Shetoria Roach (4th priority) 

• Jonathan Powell (1st priority) 

• Wayne Peede (2nd priority) 

• Carissa Best (2nd priority) 

• Bryan Fagundus (1st Priority) 

Staff recommends that all of these applicants listed above, be appointed to an additional three (3) year term 

on the Stormwater Advisory Board. 

Budgetary Impact: None 

Recommendation: Staff recommends appointment of the above to the Stormwater Advisory Board 

 

21



Received by Don Harvey January 12, 2024 
Updated 02/05/2024 - DAH

22



Received 08/20/24 DAH

23



Jonathan E. Powell  EDUCATION 
891 Corbett Street BS Industrial Technology 2011  
Winterville, North Carolina 28590  Old Dominion University 
jpowe050@gmail.com  Norfolk, Virginia  
(512) 820-3830 (Cell)  
(252) 355-7006 (Work) Demonstrated Senior Logistician, 2015 
 International Society of Logistics 
 
 

 MS Acquisition and Contract Management 2017  
 Florida Institute of Technology 
 Melbourne, Florida 
 
Military Awards: Bronze Star Medal; 3x Army Commendation Medals; Army Achievement Medal. Navy & Marine Corps 
Achievement Medal. 
 
Present Commercial Real Estate Advisor The Overton Group:  Specializing in helping clients with their commercial and 
industrial real estate needs. Focusing on warehousing and industrial projects and life cycle management of projects. 
  
 

5/2021-08/2022 Production Supervisor / Training Specialist III Thermo Fisher Scientific:   
• Supervised 3 packaging lines; Organized the daily operations of packaging line, assisted in production scheduling. 
• Leads all aspects of the shift through actively communicating the daily metrics and goals set for each shift as well as 

actively spending time with each employee at every station assisting in troubleshooting and looking for ways to 
continuously improve each role to eliminate downtime. 

• Active in the process improvement team, conducted safety audits; Ensured accountability for safety, quality & 
production. Streamlined the onboarding administrative tasks to make the process more efficient.  

• Developed and Implemented training programs, to include the Oral Solid Dosage University and created a customized 
training plan with the NC Community College system, creating  a partnership with Pitt Community College,  and 
establishing a 4-week onboarding training program for Manufacturing and Packaging Technicians. 
 

1/2021-4/2021 Supply Chain Operations Supervisor, Pactiv Evergreen: Coordinates inbound & outbound shipments      
according to shipment wave priorities. Evaluates and solves problems, develops solutions, and prepares recommendations 
to management to ensure continuous improvement. 
• Provides leadership to the staff; leads daily KPI briefing and uses multiple analytical platforms to conduct analysis to 

include SAP, JDA, Rebus Longbow Analytics and PINC.  
• Assists associates with their personal goals along with achieving organizational goals by providing training 

opportunities and career development.  Drives engagement and promotes a motivating climate among associates. 
• Selected to lead multiple projects and activities to include the redevelopment and design of the standard operating 

procedures (SOP) for the re-packaging section and recycling and waste management program. 
 

5/2019-08/2020 Professor of Military Science at East Carolina University:  Instruct, mentor, and train 31 students per 
session in Military Science Course in East Carolina University Army ROTC Program. Educate, develop, and prepare 110 
cadets annually to commission as officers in US Army. Prepare and execute on-campus curriculum, labs, leadership 
activities, and field training exercises.  Designed/managed new team building program; improved curriculum/training, 
enhancing students’ operational readiness. 

 

9/2017-4/2019 Company Commander:  Led a 125-person Department executing operations in the US and for 9 months 
in South Korea in support of 650-person battalion.  Planned and coordinated procurement and delivery of all classes of 
supply and maintenance operations.  Maintained and accounted for over $35 million of equipment and property. 

• Analyzed/identified bottlenecks in ammunition distribution chain; coordinated specific time to release trucks; improved 
process flow of 31 trucks transporting 14,600 rounds of ammunition; reduced loading and unloading time by 9+ hours. 

• Developed internal property turn-in process; improved inventory management and divested $9 million in excess assets. 
 

2/2011-9/2017 Logistics Manager / Maintenance Manager:  Led 13-person team executing logistics operations for 
120-person Special Operations Command Central Crisis Response Element.  Managed $5 million budget encompassing 
7 contracts for food, sanitation, janitorial, communications, transportation, maintenance, and construction support.  

• Led effort to combine janitorial/waste contracts; saved $180,000 yearly; earned Navy & Marine Corps Achievement Medal.  
• Led team planning, negotiating, accepting, and overseeing execution of $20 million support contract. 

 

24



Received 08/27/24 DAH

25



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

5 Board of Adjustment 1 Planning and Zoning Board 

4 Recreation and Parks Advisory Board 2 Stormwater Advisory Committee 

3 Human Relations Board 

❖ Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name: Carissa L. Best _________________________________________________________  

Address: 3198 Streamside Lane, Winterville, N.C. 28590 ______________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #: 252.917.3427  Business Phone #: N/A _____________________  

Email Address: CarissaLBest12@yahoo.com 

Employed By: ECU Health Medical Center ___  Occupation: Medical Laboratory Assistant ____  

Name of High School Attended: J. H. Rose (2009) ___________________________________  

College or University Attended: North Carolina State University (2013, Microbiology) ________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville? Four Years ___  

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (X ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s): N/A ___________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held: N/A _____________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held: Co-Grant Writer, Urban Community 

Agronomics; Treasurer, Reach Out and Touch ______________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission. I am an avid researcher 

which allows me to reach the best possible solutions. Lastly, I am truly passionate with seeing 

Winterville grow in the facets of business, socially, and ecologically in a 21st century manner.  _  

Signature: Carissa L. Best ________________________  Date: 30September2024 _________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ___x___ Female ______ Male 
__x______ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ___x___ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: 05/12/1991________________ 
________ Hispanic 

Received 09/30/24 DAH

26

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment Planning and Zoning Board 

Recreation and Parks Advisory Board Stormwater Advisory Committee 

Human Relations Board 

❖ Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name:  _____________________________________________________________________  

Address:  ___________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #:  Business Phone #:  ________________________  

Email Address:  

Employed By:  _________________________  Occupation:  __________________________

Name of High School Attended:  _________________________________________________  

College or University Attended:  _________________________________________________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville?  ____________ 

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (      ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s):  ______________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held:  ________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held:  __________________________________

 __________________________________________________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission.  ____________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

Signature:  ____________________________________  Date:  ________________________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ______ Female ______ Male 
________ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ______ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: ____________________ 
________ Hispanic 

X

Bryan C. Fagundus

2131 Jubilee Lane

252.714.4033 252.565.1024

bryan@arkconsultinggroup.com

Ark Consulting Group, PLLC Civil Engineer

D.H. Conley High School

East Carolina University & NC State University

47 years

X

Stormwater Advisory Committee

Habitat for Humanity; Board Member & President

Greenville Little League Board Member

My Civil Engineering expertise includes stormwater quantity and quality design, assessment, evaluation.

10/7/2024

X

X

X 6/15/1977

Received 10/07/24 DAH

27

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Diane White, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Recreation Advisory Board Appointments. 

Action Requested: Appoint Anthony Yocum to the vacant Alternate position on the Recreation Advisory 
Board 

Attachment: Applications on file 

Prepared By: Diane White, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 10/1/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) is composed of seven (7) Resident members, two (2) Non-Resident 

(ETJ) members, and one (1) Alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident. 

 

There are currently applications on file in which applicant indicated RAB as their interest or preference. The 

applicants, all of whom are Town residents, are as follows (listed in order of receipt): 

• Shetoria Roach (1st priority) 

• Chanelle Flowers (1st and only priority) 

• Jonathan Powell (4th priority) 

• Anthony Yocum (1st and only priority) 

• Lindsey Price (1st and only priority) 

• Carissa Best (4th priority) 

 

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) currently has one (1) RAB Alternate position vacancy. Staff 

recommends Richard “Anthony” Yocum, Jr to fill the vacant RAB Alternate position. Mr. Yocum has served 

as coach for his two sons in multiple sports through Winterville Parks and Recreation. His children have 

played in our programs such as Pee Wee, Flag Football and Cal Ripken Baseball for several years. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends appointment of Anthony Yocum to the vacant Alternate position on 
the Recreation Advisory Board. 

 

28



Received by Don Harvey January 12, 2024 
Updated 02/05/2024 - DAH

29



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment Planning and Zoning Board 

Recreation and Parks Advisory Board Stormwater Advisory Committee 

Human Relations Board 

❖ Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name:  _____________________________________________________________________  

Address:  ___________________________________________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #:   Business Phone #:  ________________________  

Email Address:  

Employed By:  _________________________  Occupation:  __________________________  

Name of High School Attended:  _________________________________________________  

College or University Attended:  _________________________________________________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville?  ____________  

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (      ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s):  ______________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held:  ________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held:  __________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission.  ____________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

Signature:  ____________________________________  Date:  ________________________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ______ Female ______ Male 
________ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ______ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: ____________________ 
________ Hispanic 

Received 6/10/24 DAH

(In Town)

30

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com
x

Chanelle Flowers

425 Williamston Drive Winterville, NC 28590

252-916-1658

cfhardison1922@gmail.com

Lenoir Community College

Coordinator and Instructor of Adult High School/Hybrid Programs

D.H. Conley

East Carolina University

32 years

x

NPHC of Pitt County, 2nd Vice President

Sigma Gamma Rho Sorority, Inc, 2nd Vice Presiden  Pitt County Aids Service Organization (PICASO)-Vice President

NPHC of Pitt County-delegate

LAMBS PLACE-board member, Sigma Gamma Rho Sorority, Inc-Secretary, Advisor, Chair, Delegate, PICASO-secretary, board member 

I have been a resident of the town of WInterville for 32 years and have seen the growth and development.  With that being said I would like to be an active part of the recreational opportunities offered for the residents and surrounding counites to experience.  I would love to feed my passion for planning, programming, community, and family

x

x

x

03/17/1978



Received 08/20/24 DAH

31



Jonathan E. Powell  EDUCATION 
891 Corbett Street BS Industrial Technology 2011  
Winterville, North Carolina 28590  Old Dominion University 
jpowe050@gmail.com  Norfolk, Virginia  
(512) 820-3830 (Cell)  
(252) 355-7006 (Work) Demonstrated Senior Logistician, 2015 
 International Society of Logistics 
 
 

 MS Acquisition and Contract Management 2017  
 Florida Institute of Technology 
 Melbourne, Florida 
 
Military Awards: Bronze Star Medal; 3x Army Commendation Medals; Army Achievement Medal. Navy & Marine Corps 
Achievement Medal. 
 
Present Commercial Real Estate Advisor The Overton Group:  Specializing in helping clients with their commercial and 
industrial real estate needs. Focusing on warehousing and industrial projects and life cycle management of projects. 
  
 

5/2021-08/2022 Production Supervisor / Training Specialist III Thermo Fisher Scientific:   
• Supervised 3 packaging lines; Organized the daily operations of packaging line, assisted in production scheduling. 
• Leads all aspects of the shift through actively communicating the daily metrics and goals set for each shift as well as 

actively spending time with each employee at every station assisting in troubleshooting and looking for ways to 
continuously improve each role to eliminate downtime. 

• Active in the process improvement team, conducted safety audits; Ensured accountability for safety, quality & 
production. Streamlined the onboarding administrative tasks to make the process more efficient.  

• Developed and Implemented training programs, to include the Oral Solid Dosage University and created a customized 
training plan with the NC Community College system, creating  a partnership with Pitt Community College,  and 
establishing a 4-week onboarding training program for Manufacturing and Packaging Technicians. 
 

1/2021-4/2021 Supply Chain Operations Supervisor, Pactiv Evergreen: Coordinates inbound & outbound shipments      
according to shipment wave priorities. Evaluates and solves problems, develops solutions, and prepares recommendations 
to management to ensure continuous improvement. 
• Provides leadership to the staff; leads daily KPI briefing and uses multiple analytical platforms to conduct analysis to 

include SAP, JDA, Rebus Longbow Analytics and PINC.  
• Assists associates with their personal goals along with achieving organizational goals by providing training 

opportunities and career development.  Drives engagement and promotes a motivating climate among associates. 
• Selected to lead multiple projects and activities to include the redevelopment and design of the standard operating 

procedures (SOP) for the re-packaging section and recycling and waste management program. 
 

5/2019-08/2020 Professor of Military Science at East Carolina University:  Instruct, mentor, and train 31 students per 
session in Military Science Course in East Carolina University Army ROTC Program. Educate, develop, and prepare 110 
cadets annually to commission as officers in US Army. Prepare and execute on-campus curriculum, labs, leadership 
activities, and field training exercises.  Designed/managed new team building program; improved curriculum/training, 
enhancing students’ operational readiness. 

 

9/2017-4/2019 Company Commander:  Led a 125-person Department executing operations in the US and for 9 months 
in South Korea in support of 650-person battalion.  Planned and coordinated procurement and delivery of all classes of 
supply and maintenance operations.  Maintained and accounted for over $35 million of equipment and property. 

• Analyzed/identified bottlenecks in ammunition distribution chain; coordinated specific time to release trucks; improved 
process flow of 31 trucks transporting 14,600 rounds of ammunition; reduced loading and unloading time by 9+ hours. 

• Developed internal property turn-in process; improved inventory management and divested $9 million in excess assets. 
 

2/2011-9/2017 Logistics Manager / Maintenance Manager:  Led 13-person team executing logistics operations for 
120-person Special Operations Command Central Crisis Response Element.  Managed $5 million budget encompassing 
7 contracts for food, sanitation, janitorial, communications, transportation, maintenance, and construction support.  

• Led effort to combine janitorial/waste contracts; saved $180,000 yearly; earned Navy & Marine Corps Achievement Medal.  
• Led team planning, negotiating, accepting, and overseeing execution of $20 million support contract. 

 

32



Received 08/20/24 DAH

33



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Re uest tor A ointments to Boards Commissions and Committees of the T 
. own of Winter,,-\ 

·ndicate which board you are interested in serving on If you . '\e 
Please I 1· t th b f • are interest d • 

than one board, please 1s em y pre erence by using numbers (1 2 e 1n 
more , , 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment --- Planning and Zoning Board 

x Recreation and Parks Advisory Board ___ Stormwater Advisory Committee 

Human Relations Board 

. . t wn residency or in the Town's ET J to be appointed to any volunteer board 
•!• Require In- o • 

LL~in~d~s:ay~S~. :_P~ric=e~------~-=-===----------------------
Name: _ 

L.28~0~4~s~y~r:ah~C_::ou:.:rt_::,_:Wi~m.:.:te~rv-i_lle...:.,_N_C_2_85_9_0 _____________________ _ 
Address:_ 

Ph #
. 919-394-2695 Business Phone#: _2_s_2_-2_o_a_-3_7_7_a ______ _ 

Home one . ___________ _ 

•1 Add . ,l.;,s~p0:6::2:3@~g~m=a.:il._:co=m.:..:__ ___________ ~~-:--=~~:::--.--------
EmaI ress. _ 

E I d B 
Caswell Developmental Center O t· Clinical Social Worker 

mp aye y: ccupa ,on: 

Name of High School Attended: North Duplin Jr./Sr. High School . . 

. . University of Mount Olive and East Carolina Un1vers1ty 
College or Un1versIty Attended: 

How long have you been a resident of Winterville? _s_y_e_a_rs ___ _ 

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? ( ) Yes ( X ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s): _______________________ _ 

Current membership in organization and offices held: -~--=~C>---c..=::;__ ____________ _ 

Past membership in organizations and offices held: -n4"----""-.-9.-~i::..._---------------

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission. I'm active within the community 

and as a mother want to see Parks and Recreation flourish and provide a lot of opportun,·t,·e t •t· s o our c, rzens to be 

active and connected to one another. 

Signature: .<._>~~~c::::.::::::::::.._______ Date: ~ J d\ J ~'i 

Please return to: To of Winterville Town Clerk's Office PO Box 1459 Winterville NC 2 
or email don.harvev@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. ' 8590 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: 
African American 

----American Indian 
Asian or Pacific Islander 

-,-z--,,-- Caucasian 
• Hispanic 

Sex: ...E.....-- Female ___ Male 

US Citizenship: ~Yes ___ No 

Birth Date: ---------

• Received 08/21/24 DAH

34



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment Planning and Zoning Board 
X Recreation and Parks Advisory Board 

Human Relations Board 

Stormwater Advisory Committee 

•!• Require in-town residency or in the Town's ET J to be appointed to any volunteer board. 
Name: Lindsay S. Price 

Address: 2804 Syrah Court, Winterville, NC 28590 

Home Phone #: 919-394-2595 Business Phone #: 252-208-3776 ---------- -----------
Em a i I Address: lsp0623@gmail.com 

Employed By: Caswell Developmental Center Occupation: Clinical Social Worker 

Name of High School Attended: _N_o_rth_D_u_p_lin_J_r_.lS_r_. H_ig_h_S_c_ho_o_l ___________ _ 

College or University Attended: University of Mount Olive and East Carolina University 

How long have you been a resident of Winterville? _5_ye_a_rs __ _ 

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? ( ) Yes ( x ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s): ___________________ _ 

Current membership in organization and offices held: -~--="'+-Q...."'-=------------

Past membership in organizations and offices held: __.t\4.____ ..... °'-«~'--------------

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission. I'm active within the community 
and as a mother want to see Parks and Recreation flourish and provide a lot of opportunities to our citizens to be 

active and connected to one another. 

Signature: l.:;~:=::::~~~::::::. ________ _ Date: 1s}d\J~l\ 
Please return to: To of Winterville Town Clerk's Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex:-&...-- Female __ Male 
African American ---
American Indian --- US Citizenship: /Yes __ No 
Asian or Pacific Islander -,-z-.- Caucasian .. 

___ Hispanic 
Birth Date: _______ _ 

35



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

5 Board of Adjustment 1 Planning and Zoning Board 

4 Recreation and Parks Advisory Board 2 Stormwater Advisory Committee 

3 Human Relations Board 

❖ Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name: Carissa L. Best _________________________________________________________  

Address: 3198 Streamside Lane, Winterville, N.C. 28590 ______________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #: 252.917.3427  Business Phone #: N/A _____________________  

Email Address: CarissaLBest12@yahoo.com 

Employed By: ECU Health Medical Center ___  Occupation: Medical Laboratory Assistant ____  

Name of High School Attended: J. H. Rose (2009) ___________________________________  

College or University Attended: North Carolina State University (2013, Microbiology) ________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville? Four Years ___  

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (X ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s): N/A ___________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held: N/A _____________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held: Co-Grant Writer, Urban Community 

Agronomics; Treasurer, Reach Out and Touch ______________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission. I am an avid researcher 

which allows me to reach the best possible solutions. Lastly, I am truly passionate with seeing 

Winterville grow in the facets of business, socially, and ecologically in a 21st century manner.  _  

Signature: Carissa L. Best ________________________  Date: 30September2024 _________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ___x___ Female ______ Male 
__x______ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ___x___ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: 05/12/1991________________ 
________ Hispanic 

Received 09/30/24 DAH

36

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Ron Mills, Interim Electric Utilities Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Purchase Yanmar Mini Excavator Vi050-6A. 

Action Requested: Approve Purchase of Yanmar Mini Excavator. 

Attachment: Mini Excavator Quotes. 

Prepared By: Ron Mills, Interim Electric Utilities Director Date: 9/30/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp – 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

The 2024-2025 Electric Fund Budget allocated monies for the purchase of a Mini Excavator. Staff has 

received three different quotes and National Equipment Dealers was the lowest on price. 

The Yanmar Mini Excavator Vi050-6A, 5 Ton, comes with a 4 year/4,000-hour full machine warranty. 

All quotes were discounted through NC contract. 

This equipment will assist the Electric department in expansion of Winterville's service territory. 

Budgetary Impact: The FYE 25 budget allocated monies for the purchase of the Mini Excavator. Funds of 
$90,000 were budgeted under the Capital Outlay Account. The low quote was $76,543.14 for the Yanmar 
Vi050-6A, at $13,456.86 under the budgeted amount. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval to purchase the Yanmar Mini Excavator from National 
Equipment Dealers out of Grimesland, NC. 

 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Chris Williams, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Police Department is requesting our continued participation and contract for year 2024-2025 
with Pitt County Schools for the Town of Winterville to supply three (3) School Resource Officers at A.G. 
Cox, Creekside, and W.H. Robinson. 

Action Requested: Approve the SRO agreement with Pitt County Schools. 

Attachment: School Resource Officer Agreement. 

Prepared By: Chris Williams, Chief of Police Date: 10/2/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville continue the SRO contract to supply three (3) 

School Resource Officers (SROs) in the County schools in our jurisdiction.  

Pitt County Schools has proposed a one year contract which will pay the Officers’ salary and benefits 

($265,929.19) and the Town of Winterville is responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle, training, etc.  

These officers will be assigned to A.G. Cox Middle School, W.H. Robinson Elementary School, and 

Creekside Elementary School. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town to reimburse the 

salary and benefits cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the county, this Contract is renewed annually to 

address changes in salary or details. 

Budgetary Impact: The Department’s current budget will absorb personal equipment, uniforms, training 
costs, etc.. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Approval of the School Resource Officer Agreement. 

 

45



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  1 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

PITT COUNTY 

WINTERVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

2024–2025 

 

 This Winterville Police Department School Resource Officer Program Agreement for the 

2024–2025 School Year (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this the __ day of June, 2024, by and 

between The Pitt County Board of Education, a body politic and corporate, organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “School System”) and the Town of Winterville, a 

municipal corporation in the State of North Carolina (the “Town”) (individually “Party” and 

collectively the “Parties”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town has established, organized, and maintained an accredited law 

enforcement agency, the Winterville Police Department (“WPD”), with territorial jurisdiction and all 

law enforcement powers as authorized by statute, case law, and the common law of the State of North 

Carolina within the corporate limits of the Town, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 160A-281 and N.C.G.S.               

§ 160A-285; 

 

 WHEREAS, the School System currently serves more than 23,000 students in 37 schools in 

Pitt County; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have a close working relationship and desire to create a safe and 

secure environment on the campuses of the School System which are located within the corporate 

limits of the Town; 

 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement establishes the Parties’ duties and obligations concerning the 

Town’s involvement in the School System’s School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program (the “SRO 

Program”) utilizing WPD officers in and upon the School System’s schools, which are located within 

the corporate limits of the Town and are part of this Agreement; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the benefits of the Town’s participation in the SRO 

Program; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town agrees to provide to the School System and manage three (3) full-time 

SROs and provide supplies and equipment necessary to support the SROs, and the School System 

agrees to reimburse the Town for its expenses in providing the said SROs for the SRO Program, as set 

forth herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth in this Agreement the specific terms and conditions 

of the services to be performed and provided by the Parties pursuant to the SRO Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein below, and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1.0 Goals and Objectives.  The Parties share the following goals and objectives regarding the 

SRO Program. 

 

46



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  2 

 

1.1 To provide a safe, inclusive, and positive learning environment for students, educators, 

principals and assistant principals (individually “school administrator” and collectively 

“school administrators” unless otherwise stated), volunteers, and other members of the 

school community; and 

 

1.2 To foster an efficient and cohesive SRO program that will build positive relationships 

between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 

 

2.0 SRO Program Manual.  To effectuate the goals and objectives of the SRO Program, the 

Parties have developed and agree to be bound by the terms set forth in an SRO Program Manual 

which establishes standards governing SRO conduct and the relationship between the SROs 

and school administrators.  The SRO Manual is attached hereto as Attachment A and is hereby 

incorporated into this Agreement.   

 

2.1 No later than October 31, 2024, school administrators at schools where SROs are 

assigned and SROs must read the SRO Manual and execute an Acknowledgement.  The 

Acknowledgement is attached hereto as Attachment B and is hereby incorporated into 

this Agreement.    

 

2.2 The Parties agree that their employees will adhere to the conditions set forth in the SRO 

Manual.   

 

2.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to bar additional training to foster 

collaboration between school administrators and SROs or for any other purpose 

deemed necessary by the Parties. 

 

3.0 The Town’s Obligations. 

 

3.1 The Town agrees to employ three (3) SROs during the term of this Agreement for 

primary placement at A.G. Cox Middle School, W.H. Robinson Elementary School, 

and Creekside Elementary School.  The SROs assigned by the Town may be assigned 

to and used among any and all public schools within the jurisdiction of WPD.  The 

assignments can be changed upon agreement by the Parties. 

 

3.1.1 In the event that the SROs serving under this Agreement shall cease to serve as 

SROs, the Town shall, with written approval from the School System, provide 

a replacement WPD officer or replacement officers to continue the Town’s 

obligations as herein stated for the remaining term of the Agreement at no 

change in monthly reimbursement due under the Agreement for the remainder 

of the term.   

 

3.1.2 It is expressly understood and agreed that temporary absences by the SROs 

shall be minimized to the greatest extent possible during the school year.  In 

the event an SRO is temporarily absent from work, the Town shall provide 

notice of the SRO’s absence to the affected school administrators and the 

School System’s Security Department (“Security Department”) pursuant to 

Section 8.0 herein. 

 

47



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  3 

 

3.1.3 If an SRO’s temporary absence was not scheduled in advance (e.g. sickness, 

death of a family member, medical emergency, etc.) or the SRO is absent from 

work for a scheduled absence (e.g. vacation, continuing education, etc.), the 

Town, to the extent reasonably practicable, agrees to assign another officer to 

substitute for the SRO.  In no event, shall the School System be without a 

certified law enforcement officer for more than five (5) consecutive school 

days, and on any day that the School System is without a replacement certified 

law enforcement officer, the Town will increase patrols in the vicinity of the 

SRO’s assigned schools, walkthrough the SRO’s assigned schools at least three 

times per day during each day that the SRO is absent, and shall have an officer 

meet at least once daily with school administration to discuss any concerns.   

 

3.1.4 Except as otherwise may be required by the Town in its sole discretion to 

address a serious emergency, the Town should not utilize the SROs during the 

designated workday for duties other than those set forth in this Agreement.   

 

3.2 The Town agrees to provide and administer the SROs’ salaries and employment 

benefits in accordance with the applicable salary schedules and employment practices 

of the Town, including but not necessarily limited to: sick leave, annual leave, 

retirement compensation, workers’ compensation insurance, dental insurance, and 

health insurance.  The SROs shall be subject to all other personnel policies and 

practices of the Town.  To the extent that there are conflicts between Town policy 

related to salary and employment benefits and the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, Town policy related to salary and employment benefits shall control. 

 

3.3 The Town shall only assign SROs to the School system who meet all of the following 

basic qualifications: 

 

3.3.1 Have at least three (3) years of law enforcement experience, unless this 

requirement is waived by the Parties. 

 

3.3.2 Complete an SRO training course which is approved by the North Carolina 

Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission.  If the SRO 

does not possess certification of completion of an SRO training course which 

is approved by the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training 

Standards Commission, the Town will ensure that the SRO participates in the 

next available SRO training course offering which is approved by the North 

Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission to 

obtain this certification. 

 

3.3.3 Complete Crisis Intervention Training (“CIT”) certification through an 

accredited college, or other CIT provider approved by the Town.  If the SRO 

does not possess CIT certification, the Town will ensure that the SRO 

participates in the next available course offering to obtain CIT certification. 

 

3.3.4 Possess knowledge of the applicable federal and state laws, Town and Pitt 

County ordinances, and the School System’s policies and regulations. 

 

48



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  4 

 

3.3.5 Be capable of conducting in-depth criminal investigations and investigations 

of delinquencies. 

 

3.3.6 Possess an even temperament. 

 

3.3.7 Be capable of setting a good example for students.   

 

3.3.8 Receive annual training in school-based violence.  

 

3.3.9 Possess positive experience working with youth and/or in a school setting and 

should be willing and able to serve as mentors for students. 

 

3.3.10 Have no substantiated evidence of harassment, discrimination, improper use of 

force, or other serious performance issues in his or her work history that would 

make the officer inappropriate for performing duties as an SRO. 

 

3.3.11 Possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function 

effectively within the school environment. 

 

3.4 The Town acknowledges that the requirements of N.C.G.S. § 115C-332.1 apply to this 

Agreement.  The Town shall conduct an annual check of all sworn law enforcement 

officers assigned as SROs on the North Carolina Sex Offender and Public Protection 

Registration Program, the North Carolina Sexually Violent Predator Registration 

Program, and the National Sex Offender Registry.  The Town certifies that no 

individual may provide services to the School System under this Agreement if he or 

she appears on any of the herein stated sex offender registries. 

 

3.5 The Town agrees to provide each SRO with all equipment which is not school-specific, 

including but not limited to the following equipment: 

 

3.5.1 The standard issue firearm and rounds of ammunition for each SRO. 

 

3.5.2 Office supplies and forms required in the performance of each SRO’s duties. 

 

3.5.3 Appropriate Town vehicles to perform the duties and assignments under this 

Agreement. 

 

3.6 The Town shall ensure that the SROs maintain minimum in-service training and 

certification requirements as would normally apply to all other certified officers in 

addition to any training and certifications required for SROs.  Except in rare 

circumstances when training is not otherwise available, all training shall be conducted 

during the summer months when school is not in session.   

 

3.7 The Town shall designate a regularly employed law enforcement officer (“SRO 

Supervisor”) to supervise the assigned SROs and to coordinate the functions of the 

SROs in the SRO Program with the Security Department.  The duties of the SRO 

Supervisor shall include ensuring SRO compliance with directives and policies of the 

Town and the School System, coordinating SRO scheduling and work hours (e.g. 

vacation requests, sick leave, training, etc.), communicating all emergencies or any 

49



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  5 

 

other useful information to the School System’s Security Town, communicating any 

temporary SRO replacements with the name of the officer and contact information to 

the School System’s Security Town, addressing concerns and complaints regarding 

performance and conduct of SROs in collaboration with the School System and in 

accordance with Town protocols. 

 

3.8 The Town shall ensure that the SRO Supervisor and any other required representatives 

attend meetings with School System to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and 

its operations.  The Town shall also ensure that the SRO meets with School System 

personnel at least once annually to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and its 

operations.  The School System shall ensure that the scheduling of the herein stated 

meetings does not conflict with the Town’s needs, including SRO assignments. 

 

3.8.1 The School System shall provide annual training to the SROs no later than 

September 30, 2024.  This annual training shall include training on the School 

System’s behavioral support and discipline policies, the School System’s SRO 

policies and procedures, a discussion of the School System’s commitment to 

using its policies to ensure a safe and orderly educational environment and the 

fair and equitable treatment of all students when addressing student behavior, 

the role of SROs in making disciplinary referrals when necessary,  the limited 

role of SROs within the School System’s behavioral support and discipline 

system, and the documentation that must be developed and maintained by 

SROs in the SRO Program. 

 

4.0 The School System’s Obligations. 

 

4.1 The School System shall reimburse the Town for the SROs provided at a total annual 

cost of TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED 

TWENTY -NINE DOLLARS and 19/100 ($265,929.19).  The School System shall 

reimburse the Town in twelve (12) monthly payments payable in advance or on the day 

before the last day of each month starting July 1, 2024 and continuing through June 30, 

2025.  Overtime and additional duty assignments are not included in this 

reimbursement and may not be added to the monthly invoice or invoiced separately. 

 

4.1.1 If an SRO ceases to serve as an SRO and no replacement is appointed and 

assigned by the Town for the remainder of the term of this Agreement, monthly 

payments due from the School System pursuant to paragraph 4.1 will be 

reduced accordingly. 

 

4.1.2 Except as provided in Section 4.2.2, in the event an SRO is absent or unable to 

perform the duties under this Agreement, the reasons for such absence or 

unavailability are not attributable to the School System (either the Town 

requires the SRO to be absent or the SRO is absent due to sickness, disability, 

otherwise not available), and the Town fails to provide the School System with 

adequate supplemental coverage as set forth in Section 3.1.3, then the School 

System may reduce the compensation payable to the Town under this 

Agreement on a prorated basis and such reduction shall be credited or repaid 

to the School System. 

 

50



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  6 

 

4.1.3 In the event of an emergency when an SRO is ordered by the Town to leave 

his/ her school duty station during normal duty hours as described in Section 

3.1.4 above and to perform other services for the Town, the time spent shall 

not be considered hours worked under this Agreement.  In such an event, the 

monthly compensation paid by the School System to the Town shall be reduced 

by the number of hours of SRO services not provided to the School System or 

the hours shall be made up in a manner determined by mutual agreement of the 

Parties. 

 

4.2 The maximum number of hours that the SROs shall be on-duty in a work day under 

this Agreement shall not exceed the maximum number of hours allowed by APD’s 

policy.  Specific SRO duty hours at a particular school shall be set by mutual agreement 

between the School System, at the direction of the principal of the school to which the 

SRO is assigned, and the Town.  The duty hours shall begin when an SRO arrives at 

the destination assigned by the principal and shall end when the SRO leaves the 

destination assigned by the principal, thereby ending the SRO’s work day.  The actual 

duty hours for each officer shall be recorded on time sheets provided by the Town, and 

the principal or the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned 

shall review and sign the time sheet of the SRO each work period.  The principal, or 

the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned, shall approve in 

writing any overtime of any SRO, and such overtime costs shall be reimbursed by the 

School System to the Town upon receipt of proper documentation.  The principal of 

the school to which the SRO is assigned shall provide the Town with an executed copy 

of the approved overtime for any SRO and the amount of overtime approved.  Such 

overtime will be compensated as indicated below and pursuant to personnel policy and 

practices of the Town and WPD (“Town policy”) and overtime regulations contained 

in the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 

4.2.1 The Parties agree any overtime hours worked during an SRO’s pay period shall 

be compensated by the Town at the rate of time and one half for the overtime 

hours worked unless the SRO is permitted to adjust the SRO’s work schedule 

during that same pay period to reduce or eliminate the extra work hours, or a 

combination of both overtime pay and time off as agreed by the School System, 

the SRO, and the Town.   

 

4.2.2 Subject to the approval of the School System and Town, if an SRO elects to 

adjust the work schedule by taking time off to reduce or eliminate the extra 

work hours during a pay period, the Town will not be required to provide a law 

enforcement officer as a substitute, nor may the School System reduce the 

compensation paid to the Town for the time off taken by the SRO. 

 

4.2.3 It is understood and agreed that time spent by an SRO attending court cases 

arising from and/or out of his/ her employment as an SRO shall be considered 

as hours worked under this Agreement. 

 

4.3 The School System agrees to provide each SRO with the following: 

 

4.3.1 Suitable accommodations at school (i.e. a lockable room with limited access, 

telephone, desk, chair, computer, and filing cabinet).   

51



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  7 

 

 

4.3.2 A radio with all school frequencies. 

 

4.3.3 Keys and key-card access and/or other identification to all assigned schools. 

 

4.3.4 Reasonable opportunities to address students, teachers, school administrators, 

and parents about criminal justice, safety, and security issues. 

 

4.3.5 A dedicated parking space in an approved location for the SRO patrol car. 

 

4.3.6 A School System-issued cell phone. 

 

5.0 Employment, Assignment, and Control of School Resource Officers. 

 

5.1 The SROs under this Agreement will be employees of the Town and not employees of 

the School System.  The SROs will be subject to the administration, supervision, and 

control of the Town, except as such administration, supervision, and control is subject 

to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

5.2 The Town, in its sole discretion, shall have the power and authority to hire, discharge, 

and discipline the SROs.  However, the School System shall evaluate annually the SRO 

Program and the performance of the SRO on forms developed jointly by the Parties 

and attached hereto as Attachment C.  Attachment C is hereby incorporated into this 

Agreement.  It is further understood that the School System’s evaluation of an SRO is 

advisory only and that the Town retains the final authority to evaluate each SRO.   

 

5.3 In addition to annual evaluations as herein stated, school administrators have been 

instructed by the School System to immediately advise the Security Specialist, John 

Jenkins, of the Security Department (the “Security Specialist”), in writing, if an SRO 

is not effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities, and/or receives a 

complaint from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school 

community about actions or conduct of the SRO.  The Security Specialist will report 

written complaints to the SRO Supervisor, provide a copy of the written complaint to 

the SRO Supervisor, undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaints, 

prepare a written investigative report which shall include findings of the Security 

Department’s investigation (“Security Department investigative report”), and shall 

provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department investigative 

report.  

 

5.3.1 If a school administrator observes or is advised that an SRO is continuing to 

engage in conduct that was the subject of a written complaint or a school 

administrator makes a third written complaint within two (2) academic years 

to the Security Department about the SRO and the allegations of this third 

written complaint within two (2) academic years is substantiated by the 

Security Department in a Security Department investigative report, the 

Security Department shall then recommend to the SRO Supervisor that the 

SRO be removed from the SRO Program, shall prepare a written report 

recommending removal, which shall include the factual basis for the 

recommendation and contain the written approval by the School System’s 

52



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  8 

 

Superintendent (“Security Department removal recommendation report”), and 

shall provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department 

removal recommendation report. 

 

5.3.2 Upon receipt of the Security Department removal recommendation report and 

if upon review by the Town, there is verifiable, documented evidence of 

ongoing performance issues that have persisted despite the SRO being 

provided notice and an opportunity to improve, the Town shall agree to remove 

the SRO from serving in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.3 In addition, if the Security Department documents SRO misconduct that 

threatens the health or safety of students or staff, the Security Department will 

immediately notify the SRO Supervisor of the SRO’s misconduct and provide 

copies of such all records documenting such misconduct.  The Town shall 

promptly remove the SRO from serving in the SRO Program until the 

completion of the Town’s review of the misconduct as alleged, consistent with 

the Town’s policies and ordinances and this Agreement. 

 

5.3.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the 

School System’s Superintendent from preventing the access of any individual, 

including the assigned SRO, to School System property if the School System’s 

Superintendent determines it is in the best interest of the health and safety of 

students.  Likewise, the Town reserves the right to remove the SRO from duty 

as an SRO in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.5 Additionally, notwithstanding the foregoing, the School System understands 

that any and all information communicated or otherwise provided to the Town 

and/or gathered by the Town regarding a School System-initiated complaint or 

otherwise regarding the SRO, including but not limited to the School System’s 

annual evaluation of the SRO and/or the results of any School System 

investigation, is part of the SRO’s personnel file, is confidential pursuant to 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168, and is not subject to inspection except as allowed by 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168(c). 

 

5.4 The School System reserves the right to request that the contract services of an 

individual SRO be terminated if the principal-SRO relationship cannot, in the 

discretion of the School System, be successfully negotiated. 

 

6.0 Insurance and Indemnification. 

 

6.1 While working as SROs in the SRO Program, the SROs shall have the same 

jurisdiction, powers, rights, privileges, and immunities (including those relating to the 

defense of civil actions and payment of judgments) as a law enforcement officer 

normally possesses.  While on duty at a school location, the SROs shall respond to 

requests and suggestions by the principal, but shall remain subject to the lawful 

operational commands of his / her superior officers in the Town. 

 

6.2 Except as may be provided for a remedy for breach of the financial obligations of this 

Agreement: 

53



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  9 

 

 

6.2.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the School System shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the Town, its officials and officers (elected and non-elected), 

employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any liability arising 

out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations of the School 

System, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the School System or anyone 

for whose acts the School System may be liable, regardless of whether or not 

such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified 

hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce 

other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a 

party or person described in this section. 

 

6.2.2 Likewise, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Town shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the School System, its officials and officers (elected and non-

elected), employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any 

liability arising out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations 

of the Town, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the Town or anyone for whose 

acts the Town may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, 

loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such 

obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person 

described in this section. 

 

6.3 The Town shall hold the School System free, harmless, and indemnified from and 

against any and all claims, suits, or causes of action arising out of allegations or unfair 

or unlawful employment practices brought by the SRO, which are attributable solely 

to the Town. 

 

7.0 Term of the Agreement.  The term of this Agreement is one (1) year commencing on July 1, 

2024 and ending on June 30, 2025.   

 

8.0 Notice.  Any notice or other communication provided for herein by a Party shall be in writing 

and served upon the other Party by either (A) hand-delivery, (B) electronic mail or facsimile 

transmission, and/or (C) by overnight courier service (with all fees prepaid) to the receiving 

Party as follows, or to any other address which either Party may hereafter designate for itself 

in writing: 

 

54



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE TOWN 

  

 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2395 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2461 

Email: Chris.williams@wintervillenc.com  

(Chris Williams, Chief of Police) 

With a Copy to: 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2340 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2451 

Email: terri.parker@wintervillenc.com 

(Terri Parker, Town Manager) 

 

FOR THE SCHOOL SYSTEM 

 

Pitt County Schools 

School Security Department 

300 Sylvania Street 

Winterville, North Carolina 28950 

Telephone:  (252) 830-2313 

Facsimile:    (252) 830-1277 

Email:  jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(John Jenkins, Security Coordinator) 

With a Copy to: 

The Pitt County Board of Education 

1717 West Fifth Street 

Greenville, North Carolina 27834 

Telephone:  (252) 830-4227 

Facsimile:   (252) 830-0099 

Email:  ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(Emma J. Hodson, Attorney for The Pitt 

County Board of Education) 

 

If either Party hereto changes its address or other contact information for purposes of this 

Agreement, the Party so changing shall give the other Party appropriate written notice of 

change of address in the manner specified above.   

 

9.0 Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with or 

without cause (for convenience) upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other Party as 

provided in Section 8.0 herein. Termination of this Agreement may only be accomplished as 

provided herein.  In the event this Agreement is terminated, compensation will be made to the 

Town for all services performed prior to the date of termination. 

 

10.0 Arm’s Length Negotiation.  The Parties further agree that this Agreement is to be deemed to 

have been prepared jointly by the Parties hereto, after arm’s length negotiations, and that any 

ambiguity or uncertainty existing herein, if any, shall not be interpreted against the other Party.  

The Parties further agree to sign any and all instruments or documents necessary to carry out 

the full purpose and intent of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties 

and their successors in interest. 

 

11.0 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, related to the 

subject matter of this Agreement.   

 

55

mailto:Chris.williams@wintervillenc.com
mailto:terri.parker@wintervillenc.com
mailto:jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us
mailto:ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us


Winterville PD SRO Agreement  11 

 

12.0 Amendment and Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended by mutual 

consent of the Parties as long as the amendment is executed in the same fashion as this 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may develop additional policies and 

procedures by consent to implement this Agreement, including but not limited to policies and 

procedures regarding reporting requirements and sharing information between the School 

System and the Town.  Further, each Party may develop internal policies and procedures to 

implement their respective obligations under this Agreement. 

 

13.0 Consideration.  For and in consideration of the Town providing the SROs for participation in 

the SRO Program as described herein, the School System agrees to reimburse the Town for the 

cost of the SROs, as described in this Agreement. 

 

14.0 Severability.  The non-enforceability or illegality of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

render the other provisions unenforceable, illegal, or invalid. 

 

15.0 Headings.  The paragraph headings contained herein are only for convenience and reference, 

and are not intended to be part of this Agreement or in any manner to define, limit, or describe 

the scope and intent of this Agreement for the particular paragraph to which they refer. 

 

16.0 E-Verify Compliance.  The Parties shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  Further, if either Party utilizes a subcontractor, the 

Party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  The Parties represent that they and their 

subcontractors are in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes.   

 

17.0 Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  The venue for initiation of any such action shall be Pitt County, North Carolina. 

 

18.0 No Third Party Benefits.  There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  Nothing 

in this Agreement shall create or give to third parties any claim or right of action against either 

of the Parties, or their employees, agents, contractors, officers, officials, governing boards, or 

successors in interest. 

 

19.0 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the 

day and year first written above. 

 

[Remainder of Page Left Blank Intentionally. Signature Page Follows.] 

  

56



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  12 

 

 

THE PITT COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

 

 

 

  

Ethan A. Lenker  Terri L. Parker 

Superintendent  Town Manager 

 

 

 

  

Aaron Errickson  Chris Williams 

Executive Director of Operations  Chief of Police 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

  

Emma J. Hodson 

Attorney for The Pitt County Board of 

Education 

 E. Keen Lassiter 

Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATION: 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 

Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

 

  

Debra Baggett 

Chief Financial Officer, Pitt County Schools 

 Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

57



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 

 
PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 

2024-2025 

 

58



1 
 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 
2024-2025 

 
I. Goals of the SRO Program, Purpose of this Manual, and Prohibition on Unlawful 

Discrimination  
 
The Pitt County Board of Education is grateful for strong relationships with six law enforcement 
agencies.  Through the Board’s partnerships with the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 
Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s 
Office, and Winterville Police Department, Pitt County Schools is able to have an efficient and 
cohesive School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program with the primary goals of (1) providing a safe, 
inclusive, and positive learning environment for all students, educators, administrators, 
volunteers, and other members of the school community and (2) building positive relationships 
between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 
 
The purpose of this manual is to ensure that key stakeholders (i.e. principals, assistant principals, 
central office staff, and SROs) have a clear understanding of the role and duties of SROs, the 
role and duties of school system administrators, how SROs and school system administrators 
should collaborate to achieve the goals of the SRO program, and limitations on the relationship 
between SROs and the school system. 
 
All key stakeholders should be aware that the SRO Program is to be operated without 
discrimination against any person on the basis of sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin, 
age or disability.  Under no circumstances will any stakeholder, the Board, or representative of 
the law enforcement agencies supplying SROs engage in any conduct in violation of state or 
federal anti-discrimination law in their interactions with students, including but not limited to any 
retaliation for reporting, alleging, or filing complaints concerning any alleged discrimination. 
 
II. The Imposition of School Discipline 

 
A. Routine Disciplinary Matters 

 
1. Principals and assistant principals (“school administrators”) shall be solely responsible 

for implementing the Student Code of Conduct and school discipline policies.  School 
administrators, not the SROs, have primary responsibility for maintaining order in the 
school environment and for investigating and responding to school disciplinary matters. 

 
2. The SRO shall refer any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the principal 

or designee of the school where the student conduct arises and shall not independently 
investigate or administer consequences for violations of the Student Code of Conduct or 
any school disciplinary rules. 

 
3. The SRO should generally not have any involvement in routine disciplinary matters, such 

as tardiness, loitering, noncompliance, the use of inappropriate language, dress code 
violations, minor classroom disruptions, and disrespectful behaviors and other similar 
minor infractions of school rules unless such actions rise to the level of a criminal act.1 

 
4. School administrators shall only request SRO assistance when necessary to protect the 

physical safety of staff, students, or others. 

 
1 For purposes of this Manual, the word crime or criminal includes delinquency. 

59



2 

5. The SRO will not be involved in the questioning of students initiated and conducted by
school personnel in disciplinary matters unless requested by a school administrator to
maintain a safe and secure school environment.  If the SRO’s presence is requested
under these circumstances, the SRO shall limit his or her involvement to only what is
reasonably necessary, based on his or her own observations, training, and experience,
to protect the safety and security of members of the school community.  The SRO shall
not lead the investigation or actively question students.

B. Joint Law Enforcement and School Disciplinary Investigations

1. In cases where school disciplinary investigations and law enforcement investigations into
criminal activity overlap and relate to matters affecting health or safety (e.g., when both
a school administrator and an SRO are investigating matters related to the presence of
drugs or weapons on campus), it may be appropriate for school administrators and SROs
to work in tandem.  In such events, the law enforcement investigation takes precedence
over school disciplinary issues.  In such circumstances, the SRO shall be mindful of and
clarify his or her role as a law enforcement officer conducting a law enforcement
investigation when interviewing student witnesses, particularly students suspected of
criminal wrongdoing.

III. Investigation of Criminal Matters

A. SRO Initiated Investigations into Criminal Activity at School

1. SROs may initiate appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal matters,
including matters that threaten the safety and security of the school or its occupants,
and/or intervene with staff or students (with or without a referral from a school
administrator) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of persons in the school
environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to health or safety.

2. However, any such intervention shall be reasonable in scope and duration in light of the
nature of the circumstances presented and shall be reasonably calculated to protect the
physical safety of members within the school community, while minimizing, to the extent
possible, any unintended negative effects on students.

3. Additionally, all law enforcement actions and interventions to protect the safety of others
and the SRO shall be consistent with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies.

4. SROs shall assess allegations of potential criminal activity committed on or adjacent to
school property to determine whether further actions by law enforcement are required.

a. An SRO shall intervene in all situations involving mandatory reportable
offenses (i.e. assault resulting in serious personal injury, sexual assault,
sexual offense, rape, kidnapping, indecent liberties with a minor, assault
involving the use of a weapon, possession of a firearm in violation of the law,
possession of a weapon in violation of the law, or possession of a controlled
substance in violation of the law).  In situations involving mandatory
reportable offenses, the SRO shall report the offense to his or her agency
for investigation.  The decision to pursue legal action shall be in the
discretion of the law enforcement agency, the District Attorney, and/ or the

60



3 
 

court.   
 

b. In situations involving non-reportable offenses, the SRO shall make an effort 
to divert cases from the court system when appropriate.   

 
5. It is understood by the Parties that an SRO may use reasonable force when, based on 

the SRO’s observations, training, and experience, the force is necessary to protect the 
safety and security of members of the school environment and comports with the SRO’s 
law enforcement agency’s procedures and protocols and all applicable laws. 

 
6. SROs shall also, whenever possible, advise the principal before requesting additional 

law enforcement assistance on campus and shall request such assistance only when 
necessary to protect the safety or security of those present on the school campus. 

 
7. Criminal investigations, arrests, and taking juveniles into temporary custody in 

accordance with Section 7B-1901 of the North Carolina General Statutes by SROs will 
be conducted in accordance with all applicable legal requirements, including all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies governing the use of force, interrogations, 
searches, and arrests. 

 
B. Investigative (Searches, Questioning, etc.), Temporary Custody, and Arrest 

Procedures 
 

1. An SRO shall promptly notify a school administrator whenever he or she asks a student 
questions of an investigative nature or takes any direct law enforcement action against 
a student; however, notification may be withheld until deemed appropriate by the SRO if 
such notification would endanger a student or any other person or compromise an 
ongoing criminal investigation.   

 
2. An SRO shall promptly notify a school administrator and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of 

any student arrested for a criminal offense or taken into temporary custody pursuant to 
Section 7B-1900 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

3. All SRO questioning or searches of students suspected of criminal wrongdoing and/or 
searches of property by an SRO must be in accordance with applicable law.  In particular, 
SROs and school administrators should be familiar with the differing standards governing 
searches by law enforcement officers for law enforcement purposes as compared with 
searches by school administrators in connection with student discipline.  Except as set 
out in Paragraph 1 of this Subsection, SROs should contact a school administrator 
before questioning or searching a student regarding an investigation into suspected 
criminal activity to determine if a school administrator should be present during the 
questioning or searching. 

 

4. If an SRO questions, searches, arrests, or takes a student into temporary custody at 
school, all reasonable efforts will be made by the SRO and a school administrator to 
remove the student from other students and/ or bystanders or otherwise to minimize 
attention to the student. 

 

5. At no time shall any SRO request that any PCS employee lead or conduct a search of a 
student for law enforcement purposes or request that a PCS employee act as an agent 
of law enforcement.  At no time shall a school administrator or PCS employee request 
that an SRO conduct a search of a student for school disciplinary investigations. 

61



4 
 

 
6. The SRO shall participate in searches of students or their belongings in school 

disciplinary investigations only if their assistance is requested by school personnel and 
the SRO agrees, based on his or her observations, training, and experience, that the 
requested assistance is necessary to maintain a safe and secure school environment. 

 
C. Non-School Investigations 

 
1. SROs shall refrain from questioning students at school regarding non-school related 

matters unless the    SRO has a warrant or unless questioning, searching, arresting, or 
taking a student into temporary custody on school property at that time is necessary, in 
the discretion of the SRO, for the success of a law enforcement investigation or to 
prevent injury or crime. 

 
IV. SROs as a Mentors and Members of the School Community 

 
A. The SRO shall conduct himself or herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

his or her work and shall seek to establish a strong rapport with school administrators, 
faculty, staff, students, parents, and others associated with the school.  SROs shall also 
encourage students to develop positive attitudes towards the school, education, law 
enforcement officers, and positive living in general. 

 
B. SROs are strongly encouraged to attend meetings held during the SRO’s regular duty 

hours of parent and faculty groups to solicit their support and understanding of the SRO 
Program and to promote awareness of law enforcement functions. 

 
C. SROs shall be familiar with community agencies that offer assistance to students and their 

families, including but not limited to mental health services and drug treatment centers, 
and shall provide information on such agencies to students, parents, and/ or school 
administrators when appropriate.  In addition and when appropriate, the SRO shall provide 
information to school administrators, students, and parents regarding additional resources 
offered by community agencies or the agencies providing afterschool and summer 
programs and opportunities for youth. 

 
D. SROs may answer questions and /or provide general information regarding North Carolina 

criminal or juvenile laws but should not to give legal advice. 
 
E. SROs shall attend meetings held during the SRO’s regular duty hours of Students Against 

Destructive Decisions (SADD) groups in schools and SADD groups as requested.  SADD 
groups are student-run programs that educate the school community about issues related 
to drug and alcohol abuse, sexual activity, depression, bullying, and suicide within the 
student population.   

 
F. SROs shall, whenever possible and in accordance with guidance from the school principal 

or designee, participate in or attend school functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours, 
in order to assist in the safe operation of school-related programs.   

 
G. SROs shall wear the official law enforcement uniform or other apparel approved by their 

respective law enforcement agencies at all times while on-duty and serving on school 
property and shall make best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical 
and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are most likely 

62



5 
 

to occur. 
 
H. Unless approved in writing by the head of the SRO’s agency, SROs are not to be used on 

a daily or routine basis for traffic direction at or adjacent to school property.     
 

I. The SRO shall remain on the school grounds in accordance with the schedule agreed 
upon between the school system and the SRO Supervisor.  Any changes to this schedule 
and any SRO substitutions should be communicated by the SRO Supervisor to the 
Security Specialist and principals of any affected schools with as much advance notice as 
possible under the circumstances. 
 

V. Communication Between School Administrators and SROs 
 
A. At the School Level 

 
1. Open communication between SROs and school principals is encouraged at all times to 

ensure a collaborative and productive relationship. 
 

2. SROs, school administrators, and designees of the school principals are expected to 

meet on a regular basis, both formally and informally, to discuss school safety concerns, 
duties, and responsibilities.  SROs, school administrators, and designees of school 

principals are all expected to initiate such meetings to promote open and strong 
communication. 

 
3. Principals are authorized by the Board and are expected to timely report any alleged 

criminal activities that occur on campus to the assigned SRO in compliance with all 
applicable state laws and relevant Board policies.   

 
a. Presently, criminal offenses that must be immediately reported to the SRO include: 

(1) assault resulting in serious personal injury; (2) assault involving the use of a 
weapon; (3) assault on school officials, employees, or volunteers; (4) making bomb 
threats or engaging in bomb hoaxes; (5) willfully burning a school building; (6) 
homicide; (7) kidnapping; (8) unlawful, underage sales, purchase, provision, 
possession, or consumption of alcoholic beverages; (9) possession of controlled 
substances in violation of law; (10) possession of a firearm; (11) possession of a 
weapon; (12) rape; (13) robbery with a dangerous weapon; (14) sexual assault (not 
involving rape or sexual offense); (15) sexual offense; and (16) taking indecent 
liberties with a minor. 

 
B. With General Administration and Principals 

 
1. During the months of September 2024 through June 2025, the SRO Supervisor shall 

provide to the PCS Security Specialist a monthly report of the aggregated number of 
referrals.  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to the Security Specialist no later 
than the fifth day of the following month (e.g. the report for September 2024 should be 
transmitted no later than October 5, 2024). 

 
2. During the months of September 2024 through June 2025, the SRO Supervisor shall 

provide to the Security Specialist a report of all school-based or related actions taken by 
that agency’s SROs and all matters that were referred to the court system within that 
reporting period.  These reports will also include information known to the SRO 

63



6 
 

Supervisor or his or her agency regarding the outcome of any matter referred to the court 
system (if the matter has been decided in the reporting period) and the involvement of 
Pitt County Schools or an individual school in the proceeding (e.g. if district employees 
or students were called as witnesses).  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to 
the Security Specialist no later than the fifth day of the following month (e.g. the report 
for September 2024 should be transmitted no later than October 5, 2024). 

 
3. During the months of September 2024 through June 2025, SROs shall complete monthly 

security assessments for each of the SROs’ assigned schools.  The SRO Supervisor will 
provide copies of the security assessment reports completed by SROs to the Security 
Specialist and respective principals no later than the last day of the month (e.g. the report 
for September 2024 is due no later than September 30, 2024). 

 
VI. Transporting PCS Students  

 
A. SROs shall not transport any students in their vehicles unless either (1) the student is a 
victim of a crime and is being transported to a medical facility or to the SRO’s law enforcement 
agency or (2) the student is under arrest or has been taken into temporary custody. 

 
B. SROs shall notify the principal before removing a student from campus. 

 
C. SROs shall not transport students in their personal vehicles.  If an SRO does not have an 

agency vehicle, then a patrol unit shall be dispatched to assist the SRO. 
 
VII. Sharing Education Records 

 
A. Pitt County Schools officials are required to comply with the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (“FERPA”).  Under FERPA, education records (i.e. records, files, 
documents, and other materials, including security footage, that are directly related to a 
student and maintained by Pitt County Schools or by parties acting for Pitt County Schools) 
may only be disclosed to SROs in certain circumstances.   
 

B. SROs shall not automatically have access to educational records or personally identifiable 
information about a student in those records simply because they are conducting a 
criminal investigation involving a student or for general non-specific purposes.  
Circumstances where school officials may disclose relevant educational records and 
personally identifiable information contained in those records with SROs include, the 
following: 
 

1. The student’s parent or the guardian or the student (if 18 years of age or older) consents 
in writing to disclose education records to the SRO; 

 
a. NOTE: Consent must be obtained using Pitt County Schools’ FERPA Authorization 

Form which is included in this manual as Appendix I. 
 

2. The information sought (again for a specific purpose) is directory information (e.g. 
student home address, student phone number, etc.); 

 
a. NOTE: Students’ parents or guardians or students who are 18 years of age or older 

may opt out of sharing directory information.  School system officials are NOT 
permitted to share directory information if an opt out has occurred.  

64



7 
 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: School officials may not confirm non-directory information to an SRO.  

For example, if an SRO provides a student’s name and social security number (or 
other non-directory information) to school officials and is seeking additional 
directory information, school officials may not use a social security number or other 
non-directory information to search for the student’s records as opposed to a name 
because using non-directory information to search for a student is considered to be 
confirming the accuracy of non-directory information to the SRO. 

 
3. Pursuant to a subpoena, warrant, or other court order; 

 
a. NOTE: Prior to complying with a warrant, subpoena, or other court order, FERPA 

requires school officials to make a reasonable effort to notify the parent, guardian, 
or student who is over 18 years of age of the subpoena or court order to give an 
opportunity to the parent, guardian, or eligible student to object or seek other 
protective action.  School officials should contact in-house counsel upon the receipt 
of any warrant or subpoena seeking educational records.  A template of an Order 
for Release of Educational Records that legal counsel for SROs may utilize to 
obtain education records is included in this manual as Appendix II. 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: There are three situations where making a reasonable effort to notify 

parents, guardians, or students over 18 years of age is not required: (1) a court 
issuing a federal grand jury subpoena may direct school officials to keep the 
existence or contents of the subpoena confidential even as to the involved student 
and/ or parents; (2) a subpoena issued for any other law enforcement purpose may 
similarly direct the school to keep the subpoena confidential; and (3) federal law 
enforcement authorities may obtain ex parte secret subpoenas of student records 
in terrorism investigations. 

 
c. An SRO who is taking steps to obtain a warrant, subpoena, other court order, or 

parental consent to obtain FERPA protected records, may ask school 
administrators or the School Security Department to preserve relevant FERPA 
protected records, including security camera footage, prior to obtaining the warrant, 
subpoena, other court order, or parental consent.  Upon receiving a request for 
preservation from the SRO, school administrators and the School Security 
Department shall secure and prevent the destruction of any records requested by 
the SRO, including those records that may be maintained by other custodians (e.g. 
teachers), until the SRO provides a warrant or written parental consent.  Upon 
producing the warrant or written parental consent, school administrators or the 
School Security Department will produce the requested records to the SRO. 

 
4. A health or safety emergency exists; 

 
a. NOTE: School officials may disclose educational records under this exception to 

“appropriate persons” without consent in connection with an emergency when 
school officials perceive an “articulable and significant threat” to the health or safety 
of the student or others under the totality of the circumstances.   

 
i. The standard for when a health or safety emergency exists is flexible.  School 

officials should generally not release education records based on a not fully 
formed sense that a student “might” do something at some indeterminate point 

65



8 
 

in the future, but they are also not required to delay a release until the moment 
a student is on-campus with a gun.  Ultimately, school officials need to be able 
to articulate a basis for reasonably believing that a student poses a significant 
risk of harm to himself or herself or others. 

 
ii. Examples of articulable threats might include (but are not limited to) students 

making statements about suicide or violence toward others, displaying 
unusually erratic or angry behaviors, or engaging in similar conduct that school 
officials would reasonably see as posing a risk of serious harm.  By contrast, 
merely knowing that a student has access to a large cache of weapons at 
home—without accompanying behavioral red flags—would likely not rise to the 
level of an articulable or significant threat. 

 
b. SROs and other law enforcement officials are considered appropriate persons who 

need information to protect the health or safety of the student or others. 
 

5. Records concern registered sex offenders and the information was provided to school 
officials pursuant to federal law (i.e. Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and 
Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act). 

 
C. School officials and SROs should be aware that it is the position of Pitt County Schools 

that Section 7B-3100 of the North Carolina General Statutes does not create a FERPA 
exception that allows for the sharing of records related to the “juvenile justice system.”  
However, FERPA does permit school officials to report child abuse and neglect to DSS. 
 

D. Information obtained through a school official’s personal knowledge or observation (e.g. a 
teacher overhears a student make a threatening remark, observes a change in a student’s 
behavior, or reads a threat posted on the school’s social media page) is not an education 
record and can be disclosed to SROs even if an education record exists containing the 
information.   
 

1. NOTE: The general rule that personal knowledge and observations can be shared with 
law enforcement DOES NOT apply to school officials who have a role in making a 
determination that generates a protected educational record (e.g. a psychologist may 
not disclose to an SRO information learned about a student’s behavior that the 
psychologist used in a report or assessment to determine a student’s eligibility for special 
education; a principal may not advise an SRO that a student is suspended; etc.).   

 
VIII. Evaluation of SROs and Complaints Regarding Program Participants 

 
A. Each SRO is employed by either the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 

Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County 
Sheriff’s Office, or Winterville Police Department.  Although personnel decisions are 
ultimately made by an SRO’s employer, principals shall provide annual advisory 
evaluations of SROs utilizing a form developed by the Board and these six law 
enforcement agencies.  The Pitt County Schools Security Specialist shall collect 
evaluation forms from principals and solicit feedback from the superintendent and other 
administrators annually.  The Security Specialist shall then submit the evaluation forms 
and any other feedback to the applicable law enforcement agency. 
 

B. In addition to annual evaluations, principals and school system administrators should 

66



9 
 

immediately advise the Security Specialist, in writing, if an SRO is not effectively 
performing his or her duties or responsibilities and/or a staff member, student, parent, or 
other member of the school community has complained about actions of the SRO.  
Depending on where the SRO is employed, the Security Specialist will forward any written 
complaints to the officer supervising the SRO made the subject of the complaint by the 
end of the workday following the workday on which the complaint is received.  The Security 
Specialist will then undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaint, gather 
written witness statements from any individuals with information relevant to the complaint, 
and shall complete a written report of the investigator’s findings and conclusion as to 
whether the allegations of the complaint were substantiated or not.  The written report 
shall also be submitted to the subject SRO’s supervising officer within one work day from 
its completion. 
 

C. SROs shall immediately notify the SRO Supervisor in writing of any credible complaint 
received from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school community, 
or of any incident an SRO observes, involving the use of inappropriate or excessive 
physical force by a teacher, school administrator, or other School System employee or 
volunteer.  The SRO Supervisor shall then forward any such complaint to the School 
System Security Specialist.  

67



10 
 

APPENDIX I 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATION RECORDS 
 

I, ________________________________________ (name of parent/guardian/student if 18 or older), hereby give 

permission for officials of Pitt County Schools to disclose confidential education records of the Student, 

__________________________________________ (name of student), and/or any personally identifiable 

information contained in those education records to the following (name of recipient and address): 
 

 

 

 
 

The education records governed by this waiver shall include (check all that apply): 
 

 Transcripts, report cards, and other grade reports 
 

 

 Attendance information 
 

 

 Disciplinary records 
 

 

 Cumulative file 
 

 

 Special education file 
 

 

 Immunization records 
 

 

 Other health records 
 

 

 Other (please specify):  
 

These records may be disclosed (check one): 
 

 Upon the authorized person’s request; OR 
 

 One time only, upon execution of this consent. 
 

This information is provided for the following purpose: 
 

 To provide relevant information to the Student’s medical provider(s); 
 

 To assist in meeting the Student’s educational needs; OR 
 

 Other (please specify):  

 

I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time by providing my signed written notice to the 

appropriate Pitt County Schools officials.  Absent such notice, this authorization shall expire on 

_________________________________ (date). 
 

I acknowledge that this form constitutes my written consent to release written consent to the release of confidential, 

personally identifiable information that is protected under the federal Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 

(FERPA) and state law governing the confidentiality of student records and personally identifiable information 

contained in such records.  I certify that I am more than eighteen years old and that I have authority to execute this 

authorization. 
   

Signature of parent/guardian/student 18 or older  Date 

   

Name (please print)   

   

Address City State             Zip 

68



11 
 

 

APPENDIX II-COURT ORDER TEMPLATE 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF PITT 

IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE 
DISTRICT COURT DIVISION 

 
 
 
IN RE: __________________________ 

 
 
 

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATIONAL 
RECORDS 

 
 
 

 

THIS CAUSE HAVING COME ON TO BE HEARD before the undersigned District Court Judge 

presiding, and it appears to the court: 

 

1. That there is an ongoing criminal investigation by **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW 

ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** regarding **TYPE OF INCIDENT** that occurred on or about **DATE 

OF INCIDENT** which is a violation of the North Carolina General Statute ______. 

 

2. That the alleged offenses occurred at ________ School, a public school that is part of the Pitt 

County Public School System. 

 

3. Upon information and belief, **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** (for example there is video 

surveillance of the crime scene and there are statements to school administrators made by four 

students associated with this investigation). 

 

4. Upon information and belief, said video surveillance and student statements are considered 

"education records" of one or more public school students under the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, and its implementing regulations, and contain 

information relevant and material to the investigation described above. 

 

5. Under the relevant FERPA regulation, 34 C.F.R § 99.3l(a)(9), an educational agency or institution 

may disclose personally identifiable information from an education record of a student without 

written parental consent if the disclosure is to comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued 

subpoena. The same regulation also provides that the educational agency or institution may make 

such disclosures only if the agency or institution makes a reasonable effort to notify the parent or 

eligible student of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance, so that the parent or eligible 

student may seek protective action. 

 

6. That it is in the best interest of justice and the enforcement of the laws of the State of North 

Carolina to have this information disclosed to law enforcement for use in the criminal investigation 

described above, subject to the rights of the parent or eligible student whose records would be 

disclosed to seek protective action from this Court prior to disclosure. 

 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that any **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** contained in student 

education records maintained by school officials at ________ School as described in this Order be 

released to **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** for use in the 

criminal investigation of this matter, after appropriate school officials have first provided reasonable notice 

to the parents or eligible students of their rights to seek protective action from this Court. 

 

This the_____ of ________, 20___. 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Presiding Judge

69



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

SRO PROGRAM MANUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

(To be Completed by ALL SROs, Principals, and Assistant Principals) 

 
I, ___________________________________ (print name), am a key stakeholder in the success of Pitt 

County Schools’ SRO Program. 

 

As a key stakeholder, I acknowledge that the success of the SRO Program requires collaboration between 

principals, assistant, principals and SROs and a clear understanding of the roles and duties of school 

administrators and SROs.   

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read the SRO Program Manual developed by the Pitt County 

Board of Education and local law enforcement agencies to develop an understanding of the roles and duties 

of school administrators and SROs.   

 

Principal/AP/ SRO Signature:  

  

  Date:  

    
 

**THIS FORM SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO THE PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS SECURITY DEPARTMENT ON 

OR BEFORE OCTOBER 31, 2024.  THE FORM SHOULD BE SENT VIA E-MAIL TO JOHN JENKINS 

(jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us).  

 

 

 

70

mailto:jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us


 
 

ATTACHMENT C 

SRO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION METRIC 2024-2025 ACADEMIC YEAR 

(TO BE COMPLETED BY SCHOOL SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS) 
 

School Name:   
 

Completed By: 
  

 

Date Completed: 
  

 

SRO Name: 
   

    

Please respond to each of the following by writing either YES or NO. 
  

Question Response 

Q1: SRO remains on campus during normal school hours, except when necessary 

to attend to a law enforcement emergency, trainings, meetings, or official law 

enforcement business off-campus. 

 

Q2: SRO makes best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical 

and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are 

most likely to occur. 

 

Q3: SRO participates in or attend school functions during regular duty hours in 

order to assure the peaceful operation of school-related programs. 

 

Q4: SRO conducts himself/ herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

the job and seeks to establish a strong rapport with staff, faculty, students, and 

others associated with the school and encourages students to develop positive 

attitudes toward school, education, law enforcement officers, and positive 

living in general. 

 

Q5: SRO initiates appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal 

matters, including matter that threaten the safety and security of the school or 

its occupants, and/or intervenes with staff or students (with or without a 

referral from school staff) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of 

persons in the school environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to 

health or safety. 

 

Q6: SRO refers any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the 

principal or designees and does not independently investigate or administer 

consequences for violations of the Student Code of Conduct or any school 

disciplinary rules. 

 

Q7: SRO meets with principal and members of the administrative team 

designated by the principal on a regular basis, both formally and informally, 

to discuss school safety concerns, duties, and responsibilities. 

 

Q8: SRO reports any safety concerns to the school principal and/or designee and 

confers with the school principal to develop plans and strategies to prevent 

and/or minimize dangerous situations on or near the campus involving 

students at school-related activities. 

 

*If you would like to provide any comments regarding your SRO or the SRO Program and/or if an 

answer above was NO, please complete the comments form below. 
 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

71



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2024 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Winterville Human Relation Board Items. 

Action Requested: Approval of Activities. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 10/2/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/7/2024 ☒ TM: 10/7/2024 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2024

Supporting Documentation 

WHRB would like to develop a Season of Giving throughout the Town for those who are 

experiencing financial barriers. 

There will be an variety of ways the WHRB will show warmth, peace, and joy through tidings of 

giving-through GIFTS in the month of December. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: WHRB Requests approval by Town Council. 

72


	00_20241014_Agenda_Finalv2
	08_01_Proclamation_Breast_Cancer_Awareness_2024
	08_02_Proclamation_Fire_Prevention_2024
	11_01_Tucker_Moore_Net_Metering
	12_01a_Consent_Abstract_Schedule Southbrook_Annex_PHv2
	12_01b_Southbrook_Annex_ Petition
	12_01c_Southbrook_Annex_Map
	12_01d_Southbrook_Annex_Legal_Description
	12_01e_Southbrook_Annex_Res_Directing_Suff
	12_01f_Southbrook_Annex_Cert_of_Suff
	12_02a_Consent_Abstract_Schedule Villa_Grande_Annex_PHv2
	12_02b_Villa_Grande_Annex_Petition
	12_02c_Villa_Grande_Annex_Map
	12_02d_Villa_Grande_Annex_Legal_Description
	12_02e_Villa_Grande_Annex_Res_Directing_Suff
	12_02f_Villa_Grande_Annex_Cert_of_Suff
	14_01a_New_Abstract_Stormwater Advisoryv2
	14_01b_20240205_Roach_Shetoria_(RAB_PZ_HRB_SW_BA)
	14_01b_20240820_Powell_Jonathan_(SW_BoA_PZ_RAB_HRB)
	20240820_Powell_Jonathan_(SW_BoA_PZ_RAB_HRB)
	Resume_Jonathan_Powell_2024
	Jonathan E. Powell  EDUCATION


	14_01b_20240827_Peede_Wayne_(PZ_SW_BA)
	14_01b_20240930_Best_Carissa_(PZ_SW_HRB_RAB_BoA)
	14_01b_20241007_Fagundus_Bryan_(SW)v2
	14_02a_New_Abstract_RAB_Appointmentv2
	14_02b_20240205_Roach_Shetoria_(RAB_PZ_HRB_SW_BA)
	14_02b_20240627_Flowers_Chanelle_(RAB)
	14_02b_20240820_Powell_Jonathan_(SW_BoA_PZ_RAB_HRB)
	20240820_Powell_Jonathan_(SW_BoA_PZ_RAB_HRB)
	Resume_Jonathan_Powell_2024
	Jonathan E. Powell  EDUCATION


	14_02b_20240820_Yocum_Anthony_(RAB)
	14_02b_20240821_Price_Lindsey_(RAB)
	14_02b_20240930_Best_Carissa_(PZ_SW_HRB_RAB_BoA)
	14_03a_New_Abstract_Mini_Excavatorv2
	14_03b_Mini_Excavator_Quotes
	14_04a_New_Abstract_SRO_24-25_Agreementv2
	14_04b_SRO_Program_Agreement_24-25
	14_05a_New_Abstract_WHRB_Itemsv2


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}




